Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to be held on Thursday, 3
December 2020 at 4.00 pm in Remote Virtual Meeting
Members of the Committee – Councillors
LABOUR
CONSERVATIVE
LIBERAL
DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT
GROUP
Azam
Bibby
Griffiths
D Green
Riaz
Kamran Hussain
Goodall
Watson
Tait
Shafiq
Alternates:
LABOUR

Akhtar
T Hussain
Nazir
Thirkill
Salam
Mir

CONSERVATIVE

Pollard
Townend
Sullivan

LIBERAL
DEMOCRAT AND
INDEPENDENT
GROUP
Reid

Notes:
 Please note that, under the current circumstances only Members and Alternates on
the Committee will receive paper copies of the agenda, however the agenda and
reports can be viewed on the Councils agenda and minutes website five clear
working days in advance of the meeting.


The meeting will be held remotely, Members and officers in advance of the
meeting will be sent via email, instructions and a link on how to join the
meeting remotely.



A webcast of the meeting will be available to view live on the Council’s website at
https://bradford.public-i.tv/core/portal/home and later as a recording.



Approximately 30 minutes before the start time of the meeting the
Governance Officer will set up the electronic conference arrangements initially in
private and bring into the conference facility the Members and officers so that any
issues can be raised before the start of the meeting. The officers presenting the

reports at the meeting will have been advised by the Governance Officer of their
participation and will be brought into the electronic meeting at the appropriate time.


Members should be on their own when attending remotely and ensure that any
confidential papers are not visible via the technology used.

Any Councillors or members of the public who wish to make a contribution at the meeting
are asked to email tracey.sugden@bradford.gov.uk by 10.30 on Tuesday 1 December
2020 and request to do so. In advance of the meeting those requesting to participate will
be advised if their proposed contribution can be facilitated and those participants that can
be will be provided with details how to electronically access the meeting. Councillors and
members of the public with queries regarding making representations to the meeting
please email Tracey Sugden

from:
To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact Tracey Sugden
Phone: 01274 434287
E-Mail: tracey.sugden@bradford.gov.uk

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper

should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Yusuf Patel - 01274 434579)
4.

REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
No referrals have been made to this Committee up to and including the
date of publication of this agenda.

B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES
5.

ADVANCED FUEL CENTRE FOR BRADFORD

1-8

The Strategic Director, Place will present a report (Document “S”) to
advise Members of the intention to undertake a procurement in excess
of £2m to design & build, maintain and operate a compressed gas
refuelling facility at Bowling Back Lane in accordance with the
requirements of Contract Standing Order 4.7.4.
Recommended –
That the Committee note the contents of this report.
(Andrew Whittles – 07584058868)
6.

PROGRESS OF THE PROGRAMME OF WORK UNDERTAKEN BY
IMPOWER AND THE COUNCIL
Previous Reference: Minute 86 (2020/21)
The Committee is asked to consider Document “T” which provides a
summary of the progress made by the Council in partnership with
IMPOWER since the commencement of the new IMPOWER contract
on the 1st September 2020.
Recommended –
(1) That the Committee to note the content of this report
(2) That a further progress report to be presented to the
Committee in March 2021.
(Parveen Akhtar – 01274 432496/ Mark Douglas – 01274 431266/
Ian McBeath – 01274 432900)

9 - 22

7.

WORK PROGRAMME

23 - 32

The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee will
submit a report (Document “U”) which sets out the Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme for 2020/21.
Recommended –
(1)

That members consider and comment on the areas of work
included in the work programme.

(2)

That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that
they may wish to conduct.
(Mustansir Butt - 01274 432574)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5/

Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the Meeting
of Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee to be held
on December 3rd 2020.

S
SUBJECT:
Advanced Fuel Centre (AFC) for Bradford

SUMMARY STATEMENT:
The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the intention to undertake a procurement
in excess of £2m to design & build, maintain and operate a compressed gas refuelling
facility at Bowling Back Lane in accordance with the requirements of Contract Standing
Order 4.7.4.

Susan Spink
Assistant Director for Waste, Fleet &
Transport Services
Report Contact: Andrew Whittles,
Programme Manager, Bradford Clean Air
Plan
Phone: 0758 405 8868
E-mail:
Andrew.whittles@lowemissionstrat
egy.com

PORTFOLIO:
Healthy People and Places
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY AREA:
Corporate

Page 1

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

The Council has submitted the final business case (FBC) to the Government for
the Bradford Clean Air Plan (CAP) to achieve compliance with nitrogen dioxide
(NO2) legal limits in the shortest possible timeframe. The CAP includes plans to
introduce a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in 2022 that will include emission standards
for buses, coaches, heavy goods vehicles (HGV), light goods vehicles (LGV)
and taxis. Affected local vehicle operators will be provided with mitigation options
including vehicle upgrade grants that include the option for HGVs to upgrade to
compressed gas technology. As part of that plan the Council is developing an
Advanced Fuel Centre (AFC) at the Waste Recycling Centre on Bowling Back
Lane to provide compressed natural/biomethane gas fuelling facilities for the
Council’s own fleet and also for third party operators.

1.2

The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the intention to undertake a
procurement in excess of £2m to design & build, maintenance and operations for
a compressed gas station at the Waste Recycling Facilities at Bowling Back
Lane with access to the local transmission system (LTS) high pressure gas
network in accordance with the requirements of Contract Standing Order 4.7.4.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Bradford Council is directed to produce a final business case (FBC) for the
Clean Air Plan (CAP) to reduce concentrations of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) to legal
levels across the district in the shortest possible timeframe. The FBC was
submitted to the Government on the 30th September in line with Ministerial
Direction. The CAP includes the introduction of a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in 2022.
The CAZ sets minimum emission standards for buses, coaches, taxis, lorries
and vans. Operators of non-compliant vehicles will need to pay a daily charge to
enter the CAZ from 2nd January 2022. Further details can be found on the
Breathe Better Bradford website - https://www.bradford.gov.uk/breathe-betterbradford/what-is-proposed/what-is-proposed/

2.2

It has been a key part of the development of the CAP to provide
fuelling options for heavy duty vehicle operators in the District,
accessing the District frequently, that allow cost-effective
opportunities to CAZ standard. Public consultation carried out
February to 8th April 2020 showed that over half of businesses that
were
either
very
likely
or
likely
to
use
the
https://www.bradford.gov.uk/breathe-better-bradford/clean-air-zoneconsultation/clean-air-zone-consultation/

2.3

An emissions assessment of the Council Fleet was carried out as part of the
CAP development. The assessment looked at cost effective options for total
emissions reduction, including electric options for cars and vans and gas
alternatives for our heavy-duty diesel fleet. The analysis looked at the fleet
replacement programme and partnership working with Yorkshire Water, looking
at emission reduction pathways. The assessment concluded that, while both
alternative fuelling options for the Fleet would be cost effective, the cost and
emission benefits of switching our heaviest diesel vehicles to gas would be
greatest.

Page 2

alternative
and those
upgrading
from 18th
responded
AFC
-

2.4

The Council has been working in partnerhip with Northern Gas Networks (NGN)
who have been awarded OfGem National Innovation Competition (NIC) funding
of up to £770,000 to enable the Council to develop a compressed gas refuelling
facility at the Waste Recycling Facility at Bowling Back Lane by providing access
to the high pressure (LTS) gas network. This funding is proposed to be repaid
based on gas sales over a 10 year period, alternatively, the Council may seek
prudential borrowing to cover these cost of accessing the LTS.
There is commitment by NGN and Cadent Gas to introduce 20% hydrogen into
the LTS in Bradford from 2028. This is being accommodated in project design
and will lead to further greenhouse gas savings.

2.5

The Council Executive Committee on the 7th July 2020 resolved to provide
funding for the development of the Advanced Fuel Centre (AFC) at Bowling
Back Lane, including the procurement and operation of a refuelling station and
any incremental costs for 77 of the heaviest diesel vehicles to switch to
compressed gas over a 7 year replacement cycle beginning in 2021.

2.6

The AFC will use Government approved biomethane certification schemes to
ensure that diesel vehicle operators can achieve a 84% reduction in greenhouse
gas by switching to compressed biomethane gas in addition to meeting Clean
Air Zone compliance. Further emission reductions will be achieved through the
introduction of hydrogen into the gas grid from 2028 or sooner. The Council is
exploring opportunities to develop anaerobic digestion facilities in the District
that will treat organic waste and potentially produce vehicle grade biomethane to
fuel our vehicles directly.
Both locally registered and non-district heavy goods vehicles may apply for
Clean Air Zone vehicle upgrade grants of up to £16,000 to comply with CAZ
including switching to gas.

2.7

For developing the AFC the Council could expect to receive revenue from the
scheme due to a small royalty paid by third party vehicle operators through gas
sales. Yorkshire Water has expressed an interested in using the AFC and NGN
have committed to fuelling 15 of their vehicles at the site.

2.8

In Summer 2020, the Council issued a Request for Information (RFI) to ascertain
market capability and interest in developing the AFC. Nine companies
responded to the RFI of which four indicated appropriate capability to deliver the
project.

2.9

The Council appointed a dedicated Project Manager for the AFC development in
August this year and a Project Board has been established with Susan Spink,
Assistant Director Waste, Fleet and Transport Services, as Senior Responsible
Officer (SRO). The Project Board includes representatives from key Council
disciplines, including procurement, planning, legal, highways, asset
management, fleet management, waste management and principal design
office. External representatives of the AFC Board include NGN and Yorkshire
water.

2.10

The Council is currently looking at widening access to the Bowling Back Lane
site and providing a dedicated vehicle access road to the rear of the site where

Page 3

the refuelling station would be located, adjacent to the gas grid. The refuelling
facility could be positioned where the household waste recycling is currently
sited should this facility move location. Considerations of the reorganisation of
the Bowling Back Lane site can be seen in figure 1.
Figure 1:

Layout considerations of the Bowling Back Lane Site

Station location
(5 plinths: 4 CNG dispensers
plus one for potential hydrogen?

Wood & green waste
bunded storage
Possible new location
Possible consideration
of site office &
weighbridge
Consideration of visitor
parking
Possible consideration
HWRC
Improved site access &
access road to rear of
site

2.11

The Council is holding Supplier Days in December to engage with the market to
articulate our plans and look at market approaches in more detail. This will
benefit the preparation of procurement specifications and evaluation and award
criteria. The Council is interested in looking at AFC delivery models, allocating
risk between the public and private sector.
It is proposed that the Council procures a supply contract to design and build the
refuelling facility and also to maintain and operate the site. The value of this
contract is expected to be above £2,000,000 and the procurement will be
advertised and completed accordingly.

2.12

The AFC delivery will be subject to a planning application. Dedicated planning
support has been provided to the project and discussions have been held with
all key Council Officers regarding assessments required, including Traveller Site
Liasion, Air Quality, Transport & Highways, Contaminated Land, Biodiversity and
Noise.

2.13

The development of the AFC has challenging timelines, involving:
-

Council gas vehicles to be procured will require refuelling facilities by late
2021
Clean Air Zone becomes operational 2nd January 2022 with upgrade grants
available in 2021

Page 4

-

OfGem NIC funding potentially includes requirement for operational testing
by end October 2021
HSE approvals for access to the LTS are between 6 to 12 months

The scheduling of this procurement aligns with the AFC project plan for scheme
delivery by the end of 2021.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Cleaner Road Transport Vehicle Regulations 2020
EU Exit Regulations, amending the CRTV Regs, require that public sector
procurement of vehicles consider clean vehicles as the expected standard such
as electric for light duty vehicles and compressed natural/biomethane gas
alternatives for heavy duty vehicles, either by specification, award criteria or by
monetising the emission changes of environmental pollutants such as
Greenhouse Gas, Nitrogen Dioxide and Particulate Matter.

3.2

Revenue Opportunities
There is potential to charge a royalty for gas sales to third party operators using
the AFC.

3.3

Hydrogen potential
NGN and Cadent Gas plan to integrate up to 20% hydrogen into the gas grid in
Bradford from 2028. The AFC will be designed to accommodate hydrogen
considerations going forward.

3.4

AD and gas site development
The Council is liaising with NGN regarding potential future uses of the gas site
which is due for decommissioning in 2021, including possibilities for anaerobic
digestion and the production of vehicle grade biomethane.

4.

FINANCIAL IMPACT & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

Outline refuelling facility development costs, including fleet vehicles are shown in
table 1.
Table 1:

Advanced Fuel Centre (AFC) cost estimates

Item
Gas station
Site reorganisation & Traveller Site
Mitigation
Power supply
Incremental fleet vehicle costs
OfGem funding repayment

Page 5

Projected Cost
£1.8m
£0.55m
£0.25m
£2.31m
£0.6m

These estimates are being updated by Finance as part of ongoing development
planning assessements.
4.2

Financial analysis is being undertaken with regards to any cost savings,
additional income streams and future revenue implications as a result of this
project, this analysis will be presented in full to the Project Appraisal Group
(PAG) in December 2020.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

The Advanced Fuel Centre Project Board meets each month with Susan Spink
as SRO. The AFC Project Board includes key officers across directorates that
are required to deliver the project and external representatives, including NGN
and Yorkshire Water. The project risk register is continually updated and
reported to the Board with any mitigation action incorporated into the project
plan.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

All procurement activity will be carried out in accordance with the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Council’s Contract Standing Orders. All
social value activity shall be carried out in accordance with the requirements set
out in the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.

6.2

The project budget includes provision for external legal support, which is
considered necessary in view of the novel legal issues involved. Addleshaw
Goddard has been retained following as assessment of its expertise in energy
and environmental work; and its relevant experience in such matters. The
potential for NGN’s involvement under the NIC Ofgem grant funding
arrangements is currently under consideration with a view to securing the best
commercial terms and optimise the successful procurement of an operator of the
AFC facility.

6.3

The engagement of the main construction contractor and AFC operator in the
same procurement exercise
will require the preparation of detailed
documentation, including technical specifications. The Council’s Procurement
Team will be responsible for this, and will consider to what extent it may be
shared with Addleshaw Goddard. At present it appears most likely that the
operator will occupy the site under a lease, and that the commercial success of
the AFC will be reflected in profit-related rental payments. Consideration is
currently being given to the taxation implications of the overall arrangement, and
the extent to which any relevant exemptions to the current general prohibition on
state aid may be applicable.

6.4

The Council must, as a statutory body, ensure that it has the legal power to
undertake any specific project it decides to undertake or comply with any
agreement that it enters into. This project will involve entering into arrangements
with NGN, a commercial contractor and potentially Public Works Loan Board as
the provider of prudential funding to fund, construct and operate the AFC. It will
then involve sourcing suitable vehicles to use the facility, promoting the use of
the facilty by local business and developing its offering in accordance with its

Page 6

Clean Air Plan and other related environmental policies. Each of these activities
appears to be within either a specific statutory power or the wider powers
conferred under the Localism Act GPOC; and the Council’s own legal team will
continue to keep this issue under review during the life of the project.
7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Equality & Diversity
There are no issues at this stage for discussion.

7.2

Sustainability Implications
Sustainability is central to the development of this project. The Council is looking
at opportunities to create a complete cycle by producing biomethane to fuel our
vehicles from the anaerobic digestion of our organic municipal waste

7.3

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Impacts
Switching Council vehicles to compressed gas is expected to achieve 84%
CO2e reductions through the initial use of BEIS approved biomethane
ceritification. The greenhouse gas savings by the Council Fleet using the AFC
over the first 7 years of operation will total 12,000 tonnes. The Council is also
exploring the potential to introduce anaerobic digestion to treat municipal organic
waste and produce vehicle grade biomethane. The Environment Bill requires
local authorities to introduce separate food waste collections by 2023. The
Renewable Transport Fuels Obligation (RTFO) has recently been updated to
provide increased incentives to produce renewable fuels such as biomethane.

7.4

Community Safety Implications
None arising as a consequence of this report

7.5

Human Rights Act
There are no Human Rights Act implications arising as a consequence of this
report.

7.6

Trade Union
There are no trade union implications associated with the contents and strategy
outlined in this report.

7.7

Ward Implications
The Ward Councillor is aware of the scheme and has supported area office
liaison with the Taveller Site regarding the AFC development

7.8

Area Committee Action Plan Implications
Not applicable.

Page 7

7.9

Implications For Corporate Parenting
Not applicable

7.10

Issues Arising From Privacy Impact Assessment
None arising as a consequence of this report

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

The Council will conduct the procurement process based on Legal, Procurement
and Finance and input from the market via Supplier Engagement.

9.2

There are different models for delivery of the AFC based on the commercial
attractiveness of future AFC operations and the allocation of risk between the
public and private sector. These models include a supplier building the AFC at
their risk and reward or the Council funding the AFC design and build. Under all
options it is anticipated that a 3rd party supplier will operate the AFC.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the Committee note the contents of this report

11.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Not applicable

Page 8

Agenda Item 6/
Report of Strategic Director of Corporate Resources to
the meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny to be
held on the 3rd December 2020

T
Subject:
Progress of the programme of work undertaken by Impower and the
Council.

Summary statement:
Summary of the progress made by the Council in partnership with IMPOWER since
the commencement of the new IMPOWER contract on the 1st September 2020

Joanne Hyde
Strategic Director of Corporate Resources

Portfolio:
Corporate

Parveen Akhtar, City Solicitor
Phone: (01274) 432496
Email: parveen.akhtar@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:
Corporate

Mark Douglas, Strategic Director – Children’s Services
Phone: (01274) 431266
E-mail: mark.douglas@bradford.gov.uk
Iain MacBeath, Strategic Director, Health and Wellbeing
Phone: (01274) 432900
E-mail: Iain.Macbeath@bradford.gov.uk

Page 9

1.

SUMMARY

This report provides an overview on the progress of projects being undertaken in
partnership with IMPOWER and the proposed return on this investment, as requested at
the Overview and Scrutiny meeting of 23rd July 2020. It covers the following areas.
•

•

A summary of the projects developed and being progressed which commenced in
September 2020
Progress & benefits realisation – project progress to date and the current and
expected impact
Building capacity and resilience – impact of our work together on skills and
expertise in the council
Next steps

2.

BACKGROUND

•
•

It has been identified that IMPOWER will support work in three key areas within the
Council.




Health & Wellbeing – programme managing the delivery of a number of Day Care
projects to overhaul the way in which people with Learning Disabilities receive
support
Children’s – undertaking a project to analyse workflow, set trajectories for change
and identify interventions to complement and support the improvement programme
in delivering service improvements and efficiency trajectories
Localities – leading the development of a new locality-based prevention and early
intervention model that will support people in their communities, and increase
community capacity

The three projects are at different stages of development, and a limited number of benefits
realisation work has been completed at this stage but this work will continue as projects
progress.


Health & Wellbeing – the programme of work is directly contributing to the planned
savings targets for Learning Disabilities in 2020/21 and 2021/22. These were
originally set at £2.4m and £6.3m, respectively.



A small sample of reviews have provided supporting evidence of the benefits of the
approach, with work undertaken in the last year showed an annualised reduction of
£270k through stepping down packages for 36 people (although this does not yet
account for alternative support).



Children’s – work to date has identified several areas to target, for example by
ensuring that children and families receive a timely response and are in the correct
part of the system based on their assessed needs. Interventions will be developed
and tested that aim to address the impact of current demand and both improve
outcomes and manage spend.

1
Page 10



Localities – three objectives have been identified for the programme of work –
seeing the right people at the right time, creating a joined up and consistent
approach, and building community capacity. Combined, achieving these objectives
should result in a reduced cost to the Bradford District system, improved outcomes
for individuals and families, and an increased sense of civic pride and wellbeing for
residents.



In practice this will include supporting individuals and families by wrapping support
around them from the most appropriate sources in each Locality, with a lead worker
taking responsibility for them; and a local leadership team that will understand what
is happening in each Locality and help shape the response to build community
capacity.

3.

PROJECT DETAIL

As set out in Para 2 there are currently three key projects being delivered in conjunction
with IMPOWER.
Health & Wellbeing – Learning Disabilities Day Care
The objective of this project is to ensure people who currently use Day Care services are
receiving the most appropriate types of support for their needs and to maximise their
independence. Currently most of the Day Care support is buildings-based and
predominantly provided through one main block contract.
These arrangements have a significant impact on budget as there is a fixed cost
regardless of level of usage and results in payment for capacity which is not utilised. This
is a major contributor to the continuing forecast overspend in Learning Disabilities.
This project is a continuation of the work that IMPOWER have been supporting Health &
Wellbeing with since 2018. The new Strategic Director for H&WB has reviewed the
Directorate’s transformation projects and believes this is an area where working with
IMPOWER will continue to have the greatest impact on budget and outcomes.
IMPOWER’s role is to programme manage, bring knowledge and learning from other
projects they are involved in, transfer skills to the Council team and contribute to the
development of future activity which has three key elements:
-

The commissioning of alternative support through the ‘Reimagining Day Care’
project
Reviewing service users to ensure they are accessing the most appropriate types of
support
The conclusion of the supplier contract negotiations to move their support away
from the block contract (NB this is being negotiated by the Council)

In addition IMPOWER are leading on developing communications, mapping and
monitoring trajectories to ensure outcomes are being achieved and expanding the
strength-based training already undertaken with the directorate to ensure all social
workers have the right skills.

2
Page 11

Children’s Services
The objective of this project is to work with the Directorate Management Team reviewing
and analysing key data within the social care system, and use the intelligence and insight
generated about good performance and areas for improvement to develop a set of saving
and improved outcome trajectories, and identify appropriate interventions and solutions to
meet these trajectories. This work is being aligned with the improvement programme being
undertaken in Children’s Services through regular consultation with the Deputy Director
and improvement programme manager.
Example trajectories are likely to focus on activity levels and include:





Number of referrals, focusing on whether they are at appropriate levels.
Duration of interventions, and whether the these are too short or long.
Escalation to, and step down from, Looked After Child status to understand demand
and how it is being addressed.
Workforce stability, as an important determinant of good practice.

The work is being undertaken collaboratively within the department, and with Heads of
Service. It has three stages:
-

-

Development of a set of hypotheses about Children’s social care and analysis of
data to test these. Example hypotheses include looking at how demographics
correlate with demand, whether particular partners drive greater levels of demand
and whether interventions are timely enough.
Using the outputs of the analysis to establish a set of improved outcome and
reduced cost trajectories.
Establishing a set of interventions to implement that will positively impact on
improved outcomes and reduced costs.

Localities
The Localities project builds on existing work to draw together a District-wide approach to
prevention and early help in a Locality model. This uses the five parliamentary
constituencies as localities. The objective of the work is to improve outcomes, build
community resilience and to reduce demand to council and partner services.
During the summer of 2020, lead responsibility was given to Steve Hartley working with
IMPOWER and a programme lead from West Yorkshire Police to clearly define a set of
principles, the scope of the prevention and early help offer (aligned with what was being
developed by specific directorates) and a development plan for the remainder of 2020.
This was agreed by the Council Management Team at the start of September. At the same
time, responsibility was passed to Mark Douglas due to Steve Hartley’s retirement.
Since September IMPOWER have focused on:
-

Establishing multi-agency governance for the project
Developing locality baselines to identify any particular needs or areas of demand in
each locality, and to inform future decision making
Turning the principles and scope into a practical model that focuses on supporting
3
Page 12

4.

the vulnerable and developing community resilience
Working with area-co-ordinators to agree a set of pilots to undertake in each locality
to test the model
PROGRESS AND BENEFITS REALISATION

Progress has been made across each of the three projects and we are beginning to clearly
define the benefits realisation opportunities in both financial and non-financial terms.
The following summaries reflect progress to week commencing 2nd November.
Health & Wellbeing – Learning Disabilities Day Care
At the time of writing the following activities have been progressed:
-

Development of an integrated plan to conclude the collaborative contract
negotiations with the supplier, finalise the commissioning of services and deliver
reviews of all service users’ package.
Development of a communications plan and key messages for the programme.
A Building closure plan has been agreed with the supplier.
Learning Disabilities review capacity has been established and a process for
prioritising and allocating reviews completed.

As a result of this work, the following benefit areas have been identified and are being
tracked through existing trajectory models.
-

The outcomes of individuals with learning disabilities will improve as there will
be a broader range of day opportunities, that will enable social workers to creatively
support plans with individuals and maximise their independence.
Learning Disabilities day care spend will reduce as more cost-effective and
appropriate opportunities are accessed by individuals, and the move away from a
block contract will lead to a more effective use of the budget.
Learning Disabilities residential care spend will reduce in the longer term as
individuals are able to be supported for longer in the community due to the wider
range of support options/opportunities available. The intention is that this will
contribute to the targeted reduction from 170 people in residential care in April 2019
to 136 in March 2021 which was developed with the service through their earlier
work with IMPOWER and the related LD budget saving of £2.4m in year for
2020/21.

4
Page 13

Benefits Example – reducing costs through reviews
A number of reviews of the supplier’s cases have taken place, and this provides a useful
indication of the scale of opportunity
Data shared at the Health and Wellbeing Transformation Board on 28th October 2020
indicates that as a result:



36 fewer people are using the supplier compared to April 2019
This is equivalent to £270k of spend reduction.

Whilst this does not account for alternative packages, it indicates the potential scale of
benefits from this project.

The impact for this project is expected to be realised through 2021 and in to 2022, based
on the milestones listed below.
•
•
•
•
•

From Nov 2020: Service mapping with commissioning and CTLD social work
colleagues to identify the types of support available
From Nov 2020: Undertaking of reviews and support planning of individuals who
are accessing day services, resulting in them receiving better support
From Dec 2020: Closure of a number of day services that do not meet the
expectations of a more modern standards, improving outcomes and contributing to
reduced costs
Early 2021: Launch of the reimagining days commissioning framework with an
agreed pricing structure, providing better value and more appropriate alternatives to
current day care arrangements
Q1 2021/22: Conversion of the day services delivered by the supplier from a bloc
contract on to the reimagining days framework, finalising the shift to the new model
of working.

Children’s Services
At the time of writing the project had progressed the following activities:
•
•
•

•

Developed a set of hypotheses and data analysed to test them, providing a number
of opportunities to set trajectories and run interventions to deliver them.
Developed a set of emerging insights which have been shared with all the Heads of
Service, the Deputy Director and Programme Manager.
Developed a set of draft trajectories that compare Bradford’s direction of travel
against statistical neighbours and national comparators, and indicate the change
required to fall in line with them. These will be discussed with Heads of Service to
agree trajectories that are right for Bradford and can be monitored to track the
impact of interventions
Started to identify the interventions that will be required to deliver the agreed
trajectory.
5
Page 14

This project is at an early stage, but a number of benefits, both financial and non-financial,
that this work can contribute to have been identified. These include:
•

We want to have fewer children in care
• This will improve the outcomes of children who are able to safely stay with
their families, and reduce spend on placement budgets.
• This will be measured through entrants and exits to care, and spend on the
children’s placement budget

•

We want to ensure children have the best outcomes by spending optimum time in
the system
• This will be measured through the number of children in need and/or on Care
Plans for over a year and the number of ICOs over 26 weeks, and the spend
on assessment, intervention and child protection.
• This area is particularly important to track due to the delays caused by
COVID-19 across the system, but in particular to court processes.

Benefits Example – setting trajectories
IMPOWER are using national and statistical neighbour information to support the
trajectory setting process.
For example they are comparing rates of change in Child Protection and Children in Care
numbers to inform discussions about what the ‘right’ level of demand is for Bradford.
IMPOWER will then work with the directorate to agree the potential impact of different
interventions and agree both targets and the programme of work to deliver them through
discussion with Heads of Service and the Deputy Director and will enable the Children’s
team to set targets.

Through the work to date IMPOWER have been able to deploy data analysis to develop
fresh insights and use their experience from elsewhere to develop trajectories and a range
of interventions to deliver the change.
The next steps for this project are to run a range of interventions with front line teams to
identify the most appropriate approaches for Bradford, and to develop a more detailed
view of the scale of opportunity. This activity will take place from December 2020 onwards
with a view to scaling up activity ahead of the next financial year. In particular, IMPOWER
will:
•
•

Test approaches to reducing children in care through a set of interventions to
prevent escalation, understanding the needs of children in care and increasing
step-downs out of care.
Work towards children being in the system for an optimum time through a set of
interventions to increase step-down and where necessary step-up arrangements.
6
Page 15

7
Page 16

•

Contribute to the work already underway to stabilise the workforce, using their
experience of applied behavioural science in communications and incentivising
staff.

Localities
At the time of writing the following activities have been progressed:
•
•
•
•
•

A detailed Localities Model has been created and shared with Mark Douglas
(project sponsor), and is in the process of being shared with, and fed back on by,
DMT groups.
Conversations have been held with every area coordinator to understand their
current approach and to develop opportunities for pilots in each area.
Pilot activities, timeframes, and impact measures have been identified, with a
decision expected at the Localities Steering Group on which to prioritise.
A set of District wide projects that will help establish conditions for success for the
model have been identified
Baseline data has been gathered for Localities and pulled into draft locality profiles.

It is too early a stage to identify financial and non-financial benefits at this stage, but there
are two key considerations. First that any benefits will be system-wide benefits, affecting
both the Council and its partners. Second, it is recognised that effective early help and
intervention often impacts indirectly – for example by reducing demand on statutory
services and avoiding spend rather than reducing budgets. The diagram below shows how
benefits may filter down from an effective approach.

Building on this the benefits identified for this project include:
A Localities model is in place that is seeing the right people at the right time and will
result in:

8
Page 17

•
•
•

Improved outcomes across a range of needs, with an initial focus on Domestic
Abuse, Substance Misuse, Mental Health, Food Poverty, Housing & Homelessness
Reduction in demand allows practitioners more time to work with those with
greatest need
A reduction, in the medium to long term, of people who are escalated to statutory
services across the council and its partners

The model is able to create a joined up, consistent approach that reduces duplication in
some areas, and fills gaps in support in others. This will result in:
•

Greater value for money for the Bradford pound through spent on services and
grants to VCS being allocated strategically to be targeted on greatest need and
avoid duplication.

The model enables the building of appropriate community capacity that can support
residents before they need to approach the locality teams. This will result in:
•
•
•

Reduced demand resulting from residents being supported in the community,
impacting on a range of council and partner budgets
Community resources are able to support individuals and families without the
intervention of public sector partners – this frees up council and partner resource to
focus on those with greatest need
Developing community capacity improves resident’s wellbeing through contributing
to a wider sense of belonging and greater positivity about living within a locality.

Bringing together prevention and early help in a Localities model has been a longstanding
priority for the Council and its partners. Working with IMPOWER we have been able to
accelerate activity in this area, providing clear scope and moving the project on from
scoping and principles to a practical model and a set of pilots which are to be implemented
and tested.
The next steps for this project, are to:
•
•
•
•

Undertake further consultation on the model that has been developed in the Council
and with partners through, with the aim of getting approval at the December
Localities Steering Group.
Ensure Members are effectively engaged in developing and supporting the locality
model.
Develop a medium-term implementation plan for Localities using the baseline data
and analysis of current resources in each locality. This will be developed for sign off
at the December 2020 Localities Steering Group.
Develop District-wide activities that will create the ‘conditions for success’ needed
to make locality working a success. These will range from developing
communications, to agreeing reporting for officers and developing the interfaces
with statutory services. This will take place in November and December 2020, with
a review point at the December Steering Group.

9
Page 18

•

5.

It was also planned to launch pilots in across the localities to test new ways of
working, including how best to join up teams and services, and how best to support
the development of community capacity. The original intention was for these to start
in November 2020, but the current lockdown resulted in a decision to delay until
early 2021.
BUILDING CAPACITY AND RESILIENCE

A key benefit of this partnership work in H&WB has been the work with council officers to
develop their skills and experience. This has included working jointly on projects and
training courses in a range of subjects including Applied Behavioural Science.
This transfer of skills and opportunities for the Bradford Team to engage in other projects
IMPOWER are involved in will continue.
6.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
N/A

7.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL
A methodology to monitor and assess benefits is being developed between the
Council and Impower. Financial monitoring of benefits is being undertaken by the
Council’s Steering Group.

8.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
The Council has set up a Steering Group to support the delivery of this programme.
Risk and issues are identified, and where possible mitigating actions are put in
place.

9.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
Executive in July 2020 approved a one-year contract with IMPOWER to support the
delivery of key transformation programmes within a reset Council Transformation
Plan. On the basis of IMPOWER’s performance in assisting Adult Services to
reduce demand and their track record with other Councils in delivering
transformation of services, it was assessed that the contract would deliver best
value for money. The contract provided for a start date of 1st September 2020.
This Committee considered the report to Executive at its meeting on 23rd July 2020
as a result of a call in of this aspect of the Quarter 1 Finance Position Statement for
2020-21.

10
Page 19

The Committee resolved:–
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)

To release the decision for implementation.
To request that a further report be presented in three months which
specifically focuses on the key outcomes delivered from the Impower
Contract.
To request that the Children’s Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee
considers aspects of the Impower Contract that relate specifically to
Children’s Services.
To request that the Health & Social Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee
considers aspects of the Impower Contract that relate specifically to Health
and Wellbeing.

This report fulfils the request made by the Committee in (2) above.
10.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

10.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Equality Impact Assessments will be undertaken as part of this programme of work.

10.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
Relevant issues will be identified as part of the transformation programme.

10.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None.

10.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
None

10.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
Relevant issues will be identified as part of the transformation programme.

10.6

TRADE UNION
Unions will be consulted as needed as part of the transformation programme.

10.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Ward implications will be identified as part of the transformation programme.

10.8

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
N/A

11
Page 20

10.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
Implications for corporate parenting will be identified as part of the transformation
programme.

10.10 ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
N/A
11.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

12.

OPTIONS
N/A

13.

RECOMMENDATIONS
1.
2.

14.

The Committee to note the content of this report
A further progress report to be presented to committee in March 2021.

APPENDICES
None.

15.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

12
Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Chair of the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to be held on Thursday 3 December
2020

U
Subject:
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Work Programme 2020/21

Summary statement:
This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work
programme for 2020/21.

Cllr Nazam Azam
Chair – Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Mustansir Butt
Overview and Scrutiny Lead
Phone: (01274) 432574
E-mail: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Corporate
Community Safety

Corporate

Page 23

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report includes the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee work
programme for 2020/21, which is attached as appendix 1 to this report.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Council constitution requires all Overview and Scrutiny Committees to produce
a work programme.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the responsibility for “the
strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the corporate
priority about customer services and e-government, that improve the Councils
ability to deliver, govern and change, community cohesion and all other corporate
matters not falling within the responsibility of any other Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.” (Council Constitution, Part 2, 6.2.1).

3.2

The remit of this Committee also includes:




the co-ordination of the discharge of the Overview and Scrutiny role within
the Council and in relation to external bodies;
supporting the Executive through its contribution towards the improvement of
the Council’s performance;
co-ordinating the development of the Overview and Scrutiny role within the
Council.

3.3

Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that “work
programming should be a continuous process”. It is important to review work
programmes, so that important or urgent issues that arise during the year are able
to be scrutinised. Furthermore, at a time of limited resources, it should also be
possible to remove areas of work which have become less relevant or timely. For
this reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly
reviewed by members of the committee throughout the municipal year.

3.4

The work programme as agreed by the Committee will form the basis for the
Committee’s work during the year, but will be amended as issues arise during the
year.

3.5

As agreed by members of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, this
Committee will be undertaking detailed Scrutiny Reviews this Municipal Year,
relating to Fireworks, Hate Crime and Domestic Violence.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

None.

Page 24

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

None.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.2

None.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
Community Cohesion and Equalities related issues are part of the work remit for
this Committee.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
None.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
None.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
A key priority of work for this Committee related to the Overview and Scrutiny of the
strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly relevant to the priority of
Safer and Stronger Communities.
As well as this, the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is also the
authority’s Crime and Disorder Committee under the provisions of Section 19 of the
Police and Justice Act 2006.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
None.

7.6

TRADE UNION
None.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Work of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee has ward implications, but this
depends on that nature of the topic.

Page 25

7.8

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
None.

7.9

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT
None.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

The Committee may choose to add to or amend the topics included in the 2020-21
work programme for the committee.

9.2

Members may wish to consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that it may wish to
conduct.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That members consider and comment on the areas of work included in the work
programme.

10.2

That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that they may wish to
conduct.

11.

APPENDICES
Appendix One – 2020-21 Work Programme for the Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Appendix Two – Unscheduled Topics.

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Council Constitution.
2019-20 Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme.

Page 26

Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny
Corporate O&S Committee
Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574

Work Programme
Agenda

Description

Thursday, 9th July 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Report deadline 29/06/20.
1) COVID19 issues relating to the areas of
Overvall co-ordination and response to
work under the remit of this Committee.
COVID19 and the govenrnace
arrangements.

2) Resolution Tracking.
Thursday

3) Draft 2020-21 Corporate Overview &

Scrutiny Work Programme.

Monitoring the progress made against
the recommendation of Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Disucssion and agreement over the
Draft 2020-21 Corporate Overview &
Scrutiny Committee work programme.

Thursday, 23rd July 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 02/07/20. Report deadline 09/07/20.
1) Call-In.
Impower.

Page 27

2) 2019-20 Annual Performance Outturn.

3) Finance Position Statement for 2019-20.
4) First Quarter Financial Position Statement.
5) Work Planning.

There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Thursday, 24th September 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 03/09/20. Report deadline 10/09/20.
1) £2m Personal Protective Equipment
Procurement Contract.
2) Equality Objectives.
The final progress on the Equaloty
objectives (2016-2020) be presented in
September 2020. Also that the Draft
Equality Objectives be presented to this
Committee, prior to them being
considered by the Executive.
3) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.
Wednesday, 14th October 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
1) Domestic Violence Scrutiny Review.
Revisiting the Terms of Reference.
Thursday, 22nd October 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 01/10/20. Report deadline 08/10/20.
1) £2m procurment contract - New Coroners
Court Accomodation.

Report

Comments

Joanne Hyde/Stev
Hartley/Chris
Chapman/Bev
Maybury/Sarah
Muckle/Ian Day/Anne
Lloyd.
Mustansir Butt.

From th cancelled meeting on
9 April 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Joanne Hyde/Chris
Chapman.
David Wamlsley/Phil
Witcherley/Laura
Copley/Jenny Cryer.
Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Mustansir Butt.

Michele Macarten/Ian
Westlake.
Helen Johnston/Philip
Witcherley.

Constitutional requirement.
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Mustansir Butt.

Imran Khan/Ben
Middleton/Christophe
Hamard.

Constitutional requirement.

2) Bradford Council Workforce Development

Focusing spcifically on key outcomes
and performance appraisals.

Anne Lloyd.

Key findings and recommednations
from the Scrutiny Review.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Mustansir Butt.
Mustansir Butt.

Thursday, 12th November 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
1) Hate Crime Scrutiny Review.
Informal information gathering session
with the LGBTQ+ community.

Mustansir Butt.

Strategy 2015-2021.
3) Draft Managing Attendance Scrutiny Review

Report.
4) Work Programme.

Thursday, 19th November 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 15/10/20. Report deadline 05/11/20.
1) Second Quarter Financial Position Statement.
2) Draft Procurement Strategy.
Thursday
3) Stronger Communities Strategy.

4) Safer Communities Plan Performance.

Page 28

5) Work Planning.

Progress against the Stronger
Communities Strategy Delivery Plan be
presnted in 12 months, specifically
focusing on the outcomes and
evaluation of projects being delivered
as part of the programme.
Performance related report against the
Delivery Plan to be presented in 12
months. Quarterly performance data to
be electronically circulated to members.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

Thursday, 3rd December 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 11/11/20. Report deadline 19/11/20.
1) Advanced Fuel Centre procurement - £2m
Procurement Contract.
2) This Committee requests that a further report
To be considered at a meeting in
be presented to in three
December 2020.
months which specifically focuses on the
key outcomes delivered from
the Impower Contract.
3) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.
Thursday, 10th December 2020 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
1) Domestic Violence Scrutiny Review.
Informal information gathering session.
Thursday, 7th January 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 17/12/20. Report deadline 22/12/20.
1) Business Rates.
2) Council Tax.
3) Bradford District Anti-Poverty Co-ordination
A more focused report in 12 months
Group.
relating to how peoples lives are being
improved through the work of the AntiPoverty Coordinating groups.
4) Period and Hygiene Poverty.
Report to be presented to this
Committee whoch includes more

Chris Chapman/Andrew
Cross.
Ian Westlake.
Ian Day/Mahmood
Mohammed.

Ian Day/Michael Churley.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 10 October 2020.
From the cancelled meeting on
Thursday 9 April 2020.

Cancelled from March 2020, due to
COVID19.

From th cancelled meeting on
9 April 2020.
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Andrew
Whittles/Matthew
Joanne Hyde/Iain
Macbeath/Mark Douglas.

Cosntitutional requirement.
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 July 2020.

Mustansir Butt.

Mustansir Butt.

Martin Stubbs.
Martin Stubbs.
Helen Johnston.

Sarah Possingham.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 16 January 2020.
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation

5) Industrial Services Group.

6) Work Planning.

detailed information relating to service
needs and responses regarding period
poverty locally.
Officers abe asked to
work with current providers across
the District to better understand the im
Further progress in 12 months, to also
inlclude the purchases of Council
assets to support ISG.
There is a need to regularly review the
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.

fromThursday 6 February 2020.

Ben Middleton/Peter
Keeley.
Mustansir Butt.

Page 29

Thursday, 18th March 2021 at Remote Virtual Meeting.
Chair's briefing 25/02/21. Report deadline 04/03/21.
1) Implementtion of Universal Credit across the
Implementation of Universal Credit
Martin Stubbs.
District.
across the District, to also include the
support being provided to vulnerable
groups.
2) The Covenant.
Further report on the work undertaken
Helen Johnston.
in line with the Council resolution be
presented in 12 months. The findings
of the Armed Forces Covenant be
presneted to this Committee within six
months.
3) Prevent Programme for th District.
The independent review of the national
Ian Day.
Prevent Programme be presented to
this Committee in September 2020, as
soon as it is available after its
publication.
The outomes against
the projects being delivered as part of
the Prevent Strategy for the
4) People Can.
Detailed report specifically focusing on
Mahmood Mohammed/Ian
the added value of the People Can
Day.
Programme across the District.
5) Work Planning.
There is a need to regularly review the
Mustansir Butt.
work programme, in order to prioritise
and manage the work.
19th November 2020

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 16 January 2020.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 23 January 2020.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee recommendation from
Thursday 12 March 2020.

Page 1 of 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny
Scrutiny Committees Forward Plan
Unscheduled Items
Corporate O&S Committee
Agenda item

Page 31

Author

Comments

1 Verbal update from Bradford
Councils representative on the
West Yorkshire Police and
Crime Panel.

Cllr Richard
Dunbar/Cllr Tariq
Hussain/Cllr Russell
Brown.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 13
September 2018.

2 Draft Digital Strategy.

Parveen Akhtar.

Request from Corporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee members.

3 Draft IT Strategy.

Dominic BarnesBrowne/Keith Hayes.

Request fromCorporate Overview and
Scrutiny Committee members.

Susan
Betteridge/Joanne
Hyde.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 11 April
2019.

Mustansir Butt.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
recommendation from Thirsday 18 December
2018.

4 West Yorkshire Combined
Services.

Item description

Report to focus on the viability of Bradford Council using West Yorkshire Joint Services
as an internal provider. The findings from the comprehensive review of West Yorkshire
Joint Services be presented to this Committee prior to a final decision being made.

5 Hate Crime Scrutiny Review.

6 Antisocial and illegal use of
Fireworks Scrutiny Review.

The Council requests Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee to do a wholesale
review wihtin the next six months of the use of fireworks in our neighourhoods. Partners
in the review should be the Police, Fire Service, Trading Standards and Licensing.

Mustansir Butt.

Council Resolution from Tuesday 12
September 2019.

7 Hanson School's Financial
Position.

Update on the School's Financial position be presnted to the Committee at a future
meeting.

Marium Haque/Chris
Chapman/Andrew
Redding.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 6 February
2020.

8 District Plan.

Annual Report to be presnted in 12 months and to also include actual targets against the
District Plan.

Philip Witcherley.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 23 January
2020. Following disucssions with the Chair
and Phil Witcherley - District plan priorities
and how we are organising partnerships in
the future COVID world.

9 Gambling.

The Cross Departmental and Cross Organisational Plan be presented to this Committee
in 6 months. The departments involved in the devlopment of the Plan should include but
not be limited to Public Health, Children's Social Care and probation/youth service.

Sarah Muckle/Frances
Towers/.

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny
recommendation from Thursday 16 January
2020.

Page 1 of 2

Corporate O&S Committee
Agenda item
10 The Committee requests that a
detailed risk assessment report
relating to
Brexit, focusing on the Council’s
Plans and extent of any risk to
be presented
to Corporate Overview &
Scrutiny at an early meeting.

Item description

Author

Comments

Philip Witcherley.

Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee
recommendation from Thursday 23 July 2020.

Page 32
Page 2 of 2

